
 

 

Agenda 

 
 

 

Shareholder 
 

 

Date: Tuesday 23 July 2019 

Time: 6.00 pm 

Place: The Old Library - Oxford Town Hall 

 
For any further information please contact the Committee 
Services Officer:  

Catherine Phythian, Committee and Member Services 
Officers 

Telephone: 01865 252402 or 2217 

Email: democraticservices@oxford.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Shareholder 
 

Membership 

 

Chair Councillor Susan Brown  

 

Vice-Chair   

 

 Councillor Nigel Chapman Councillor Mary Clarkson 

 Councillor Tom Hayes Councillor Alex Hollingsworth 

 Councillor Mike Rowley Councillor Linda Smith 

 Councillor Marie Tidball Councillor Ed Turner 

 Councillor Louise Upton  

 

The quorum for this meeting is three members. 

 

 

 

 

 

Copies of this agenda 

 
Reference copies are available to consult in the Town Hall Reception. Agendas are published 6 
working days before the meeting and the draft minutes a few days after. 

 

All agendas, reports and minutes are available online and can be: 

- viewed on our website – mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk 

- downloaded from our website 

- viewed using the computers in the Customer Services, St Aldate’s, or 

- subscribed to electronically by registering online at mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk 

 

 

https://www.oxford.gov.uk/info/20169/council_meetings
http://mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk/ielogon.aspx?lp=1&RPID=2852798&HPID=2852798&Forms=1&META=mgSubscribeLogon


 

  

 

 

AGENDA 
 

  Pages 

1   Apologies for absence  

2   Declarations of interest  

3   Scrutiny recommendations  

 Any recommendations of the Companies’ Scrutiny Panel which meets 
on 16 July will be published as a supplement.  

 

 

 Items to be considered in private - matters exempt from 
publication 

 

 If the Shareholder wishes to exclude the press and the public from the 
meeting during consideration of any of the items on the exempt from 
publication part of the agenda or at any other point in the meeting, it 
will be necessary for the Shareholder to pass a resolution to that 
effect. 

The Shareholder may maintain the exemption if and so long as, in all 
the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 

The agenda text states which items and reports are exempt from 
publication. 

 

 

4   Trading Companies  

 4a Trading Companies  - Chairman's Statement (Open)   

  Verbal update. 

 

 

 4b Trading Companies  - 2018/19 Statutory Accounts (Open)   

  For the Shareholder to note the audited accounts of ODSL and 
ODSTL. The accounts will be published as a supplement. 

 

 

 4c Trading Companies  - 2019/20 Performance and  Finance 
for Q1 (Open)  

9 - 22 

  This report provides a performance summary for the period 

April to June 2019 and financial data / analysis to May 2019. It 

 



 

  

 

 

also covers operational activity across all work streams. The 

financial appendix is exempt. 

 

 4d Trading Companies 2019/20  Performance & Finance  for 
Q1 - Appendix 3 (Exempt)  

23 - 32 

 4e Trading Companies  - Update on Outline Business Case 
(Exempt)  

 

  A verbal update on the Outline Business Case will be given. 

 

 

5   Housing Group  

 5a Housing Group - Progressing the strategic future direction 
of the Council's Group of Housing Companies and the 
2018/19 Annual Review  

33 - 182 

  Summary and recommendations 

To update the Shareholder on progress of the strategic review 
and revised Business Plan for the OCHL group of companies. 
To receive the 2018/19 Annual report and audited Financial 
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019. 

 

Recommendation(s): 

That the OCHL Shareholder resolves to: 

1. Note the progress of the strategic review and revised 
Business Plan for the OCHL Group of companies and to 
seek support for the proposed plan of action. 

2. Note the Housing Group Annual Review (Appendix 1); 

3. Note the audited Annual Report and Financial 
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 
(Appendix 2) 

4. Note the Housing Group Delivery Programme (Appendix 
4). 

 

 

6   Minutes of previous meetings 183 - 220 

 The Shareholder is recommended to approve the minutes of the 
following Shareholder meetings: 

 

O7 March 2019 (Trading Companies) 

 



 

  

 

 

 Public minutes 

 Confidential Minutes 

 

30 May 2019 (Oxford City Housing Group) 

 Public minutes 

 Confidential Minutes 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Councillors declaring interests  

General duty 

You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item 
on the agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as soon as it becomes apparent to 
you. 

What is a disclosable pecuniary interest? 

Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your* employment; sponsorship (ie payment for 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your 
election expenses); contracts; land in the Council’s area; licenses for land in the Council’s 
area; corporate tenancies; and securities.  These declarations must be recorded in each 
councillor’s Register of Interests which is publicly available on the Council’s website. 

Declaring an interest 

Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a 
meeting, you must declare that you have an interest.  You should also disclose the nature 
as well as the existence of the interest. 

If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after having declared it at the meeting you 
must not participate in discussion or voting on the item and must withdraw from the 
meeting whilst the matter is discussed. 

Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception 

Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code 
of Conduct says that a member “must serve only the public interest and must never 
improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself” and 
that “you must not place yourself in situations where your honesty and integrity may be 
questioned”.  What this means is that the matter of interests must be viewed within the 
context of the Code as a whole and regard should continue to be paid to the perception of 
the public. 

 

*Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member her or himself but 
also those member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with as husband or wife or as if they 
were civil partners. 



 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

 
 

ODS Performance Report at Q1 (2019/20) 
 
Introduction  

1) This report provides a performance summary for the period April to June 

2019 and financial data / analysis to May 2019. It also covers operational 

activity across all work streams.  

 
Executive Summary 

 The good performance achieved across all services in 18/19 continues into the first 
quarter 19/20 – over 85% of KPIs met.  

 The Finance Director’s report as at May 2019 is at appendix 3. In summary: 

 At the end of May 2019, ODS income is 1% behind the budget of £10.1 million.  

 ODS made a £0.2m loss before interest and tax (reported as EBIT) due to the 
combined impacts of lower external MT business and transformation costs (that 
continue to be funded by the business, whilst awaiting the release of funding from the 
City Council). 

 ODS will prepare a reforecast at the end of the quarter that will confirm the full year 
expectation against the budgeted EBIT of £2.2 million and dividend of £1.6 million.  

 The ODS Board expects to fully achieve the MTFP expectation 
 Our focus on customer service continues to grow and the report contains more 

insight into how ODS is running services.  

 A People Strategy is underway which will set out plans for the next 3-5 years, 
including how ODS approach employee wellbeing, diversity and inclusion, 
management and leadership development, workforce/succession planning and 
reward 

 Construction, Repairs and Maintenance continue to work hard on introducing the new 
Target Operating Model (October 2019 launch) and growing the construction 
business. We expect to double the value of projects compared with 2018/19 

 Environment & Infrastructure continue to perform well in managing our recycling, 
waste, car parks, street cleansing and highways & engineering services. There are 
new initiatives, new business and new opportunities. 

 Improving our management of health & safety is a priority and we are driving an 
action plan for yet further improvements across ODS. 

 Pending approval of a new plan, we have rolled forward current Business Plan year 
one objectives to year two. See Appendix 1 for a summary of the year 2 objectives 
and an update 

 We continue to progress the Outline Business Case for a new Business Plan of 
investment in ODS which will create significant additional returns to the Shareholder, 
delivered through efficiency and growth.   
 

 
Q1 update: 
 
Service Performance 
 

2) ODS meet with OCC partners to review the service on a monthly basis. During this 
meeting we review KPIs, finance and identify any areas requiring particular focus 
(these include city centre cleaning, establishing a construction pipeline, budget 
process, etc.). 
 

3) ODS monitors many performance indicators, thirty four of which are target driven. In 

the first quarter 19/20 against these target driven KPIs, ODS has achieved over 85% 

compliance for Q1. 4 KPIs fell short of the target. The number of kitchens and 

9

Agenda Item 4c



 

2 
 

bathrooms installed and the street cleansing KPI. Regarding the former this is a 

profiling issue and the number of installations typically catches up. On the latter, we 

are developing a more representative measure for customer satisfaction of street 

cleanliness, rather than the national measure (NI195). 

 

4) The Council as Client focuses on eight key areas: Tenant satisfaction, housing 

repairs, voids, streets, parks, waste & recycling, highways and car parking. Appendix 

2 shows the current performance across measured KPIs year to date at Q1. The 

Client KPI headlines are in table 1 below. 

 
Table 1 – Client KPIs 

 
 
Customer Services – across the business 
 

5) ODS continues to focus on customer satisfaction and has been using both feedback 
and more in-depth interrogation within the business areas to assist in driving further 
improvements.  Whilst other areas have started to be focused upon the key priority 
has remained on Building Services and Streetscene in order to address some of the 
major themes identified. 

 
6) Buildings – customer feedback has continued to be undertaken post completion of 

work and this continues to be reported with a high satisfaction rating – see table 2 
overleaf for a dashboard of customer feedback, and the line data for ODS KPIs for 
the last quarter at Appendix 2.  During this process we have also identified areas of 
activity that require more focus to improve the service delivery e.g. door 
replacements, delays in fencing work and reviewing how we manage service delivery 
and communication for communal areas.   Meetings/discussions have also started to 
take place with stakeholders (Tenancy Management, Property Services to improve 
communication channels both internally and externally. 

Welcome to Oxford Direct Services Presentation Document

Quarter 1 Client Performance

Tenant 

Satisfaction
Housing 

Repair  

Cost 

Void 

Turnaround 

Time 

Street 

Cleanliness 

Recycling 

Rate 

H&E 

Completed 
Parks 

Satisfaction

Tenant 

satisfaction 

with repairs 

is 98.00%; a 

0.33% 

decrease 

from the 

same 

period last 

year.

The 

average 

cost of a 

responsive 

repair is  

£91.74; an 

increase of 

£3.76 from 

the same 

period last 

year.

The void 

contractor 

turnaround 

time is 

16.62 days, 

an increase 

of almost 2 

days from 

the same 

period last 

year.

32 out of 

240 streets 

inspected 

for litter, 

detritus, 

graffiti and 

fly-posting 

were below 

Grade B

The 

recycling 

rate is 

53.72%, an 

increase of  

0.39% from 

same 

period last 

year. Waste 

per head is 

45.66Kg.

100% of 

24-hour 

defects and 

100% of 48-

hour 

defects 

were 

completed 

on time.

Parks 

satisfaction 

result is TBC 

after the 

next Local 

Government 

Inform 

Survey. Last 

survey result 

was 84%

* ECN – Excess Charge Notice 

10



 

3 
 

Table 2 – Building Repairs Customer Service Dashboard 
 

11



 

4 
 

7) Communal Areas - A report is in the process of being produced which will be made 
available on the internet to enable both leaseholders and tenants to see what 
communal work is in progress.  Feedback systems will also be implemented in the 
next quarter to gain customer insight regarding repairs, cleaning and ground 
maintenance of these areas. 
 

8) Streetscene – We are in the process of conducting a further survey sample to add to 
our previous survey undertaken in February. This will then provide a more statistically 
valid baseline for the satisfaction with our services.   

 
9) City Centre Toilets – static cleaners have been in post since June in Market Street 

and Gloucester Green have benefitted from static toilet attendants between 10am 
and 6pm. Anti-Social Behaviour within these facilities has dropped during this period, 
however, this may in part be as a result of the improved weather and rough sleeper 
issues moving out onto the street. To increase customer insight installation of QR 
codes/links to our survey will be installed in all city centre toilets to assist us in 
carrying out further benchmarking and this data will be used to work with our client to 
agree most appropriate action. 

 
10) Customer satisfaction and feedback has consistently pointed to the availability and 

standard of the city centre facilities together with abuse from rough sleepers. The 
cleaning standards and issues arising from ASB are being addressed through the 
use of static attendants and additional deep cleaning. 

 
11) Rough Sleeping - The impact of rough sleepers has a significant impact on the 

perception of the cleanliness of the city and we are working closely with stakeholders 
to consider ways in which we can address this problem e.g. Floyds Row, working 
with Aspire to develop a potential recruitment pathways, etc.  

 
12) Issues relating to other aspects of services provided by ODS – This has ranged 

from park/ground maintenance through to pot holes and anti-social behaviour and 
these are being picked up by the respective teams to investigate/action.   Reporting 
on customer feedback on these areas will also be included in next quarter’s report.  

 
13) Contact Centre - last quarter figures show the number of calls answered within the 

contact centre.   Whilst the abandonment was within the 95% target for Cowley 
Marsh services this was not achieved within Pest or Building Services even though 
the level of calls were at least 10% less than those of the previous year.  Turnover of 
staff was raised as the key factor. 

 

Area Calls 
Ans 
April 

% 
Abandon- 

ment 
Rate 

Calls 
Answered 

May 

% 
Abandon- 

ment 
Rate 

Calls 
Answered 

June 

% 
Abandon-

ment 
Rate 

Pest 317 6.21 322 8.26 297 6.01 

Repairs 3034 8.67 2999 6.05 2601 7.44 

Cowley 
Marsh 

1967 6.15 2120 4.29 2121 3.85 

 

14) 3C’s Feedback 

Last quarters figures show low levels of justified complaints (considering the high volume 

services we offer) and we are working closely with the contact centre to improve 

recording/call handling of these.  Work is in progress to implement a new recording 

system using Aareon QL This will have the benefit of providing more accurate data and 

more streamlined management: 

12



 

5 
 

 

 

 

 Comments 
Apr-June 

Compliments 
Apr - June 

Complaints 
Apr - June 

Buildings 8 23 55 

Car Parks 12 1 15 

H&E 5 24 3 

MT 0 0 0 

Parks 0 0 5 

Recycling & Waste 27 10 94 

Streetscene 4 10 11 

 

Human Resources & Organisational Development 

15) ODS aspires to be regarded by existing and potential staff as an employer of choice; 

a place where diversity is valued as essential in providing better services and a better 

experience in work for all, career development is encouraged and people feel their 

performance is rewarded and recognised. 

  

16) Achieving this ambition will ensure that we are able to recruit and retain a workforce 

able to deliver the business plan in a way which is consistent with our values, 

focussed on our customers and optimises social value.  

 

17) The development of a new People Strategy is underway, outlining detailed plans to 

deliver this aspiration over the next 3-5 years. Key elements of this strategy will 

include our approach to wellbeing, diversity and inclusion, management and 

leadership development, workforce/succession planning and reward. Fundamentally 

the strategy will encompass our values and our desire to optimise social value 

through our employment practice. Including partnering with local charities, schools 

and other organisations to provide and promote opportunities for disadvantaged 

groups and expanding our apprenticeship programme.  

 

18) Underpinned by a robust set of policies and practice reflecting best practice HRM, 

using Management Information to support planning and embedding values and 

behaviours into every element of our people management practice, this approach will 

drive the change in culture to a more commercial approach where efficiency is 

pursued in order to optimise social value return and create community opportunities.  

Priorities for HR/OD in the first quarter of this year have included: 

 Supporting the Building Services Transformation: delivering a new structure, roles 

and support to staff to facilitate the implementation of the new software and ways of 

working 

 Recruiting to our Leadership Team: completing appointments to our Executive and 

Leadership team to ensure ODS has the leadership capacity and capability to deliver 

the business plan 

 Developing and deploying plans to improve wellbeing and reduce absence across 

the business 

 Working to develop local charity partnerships to increase numbers and diversify our 

approach to recruiting apprentices, supporting our objective to have 10% of the 

workforce in apprenticeships  

13



 

6 
 

Priorities for HR/OD in the second quarter include: 

 Supporting recruitment and redeployment in Building Services, planning and 

supporting transitional resource to ensure service delivery standards are protecting 

during implementation 

 Completing the development of our new People Strategy 

 Designing, commissioning and commencing a programme of development for our 

leadership team 

 Deploying our strategy to improve wellbeing and reduce absence, aiming to reduce 

absence levels by 25% in the short to medium term 

 Developing our approach to equality, diversity and inclusion, including planning 

events for national inclusion week in September 2019  

 Working with OCC to agree our approach to pay and reward, including the next 

round of pay negotiations 

Building Services 

19) There are two aspects to this business; repairs & maintenance, and construction 

Repairs & Maintenance 

20) This service is going through a substantial change programme which will transform 

the way we undertake the work. In consultation with the Council (as principle Client, 

but also staff, trade unions and what we have learned from e ranging best practice) 

we will launch a new service in October 2019 with a new IT system (the Council’s 

Aareon QL project) and supporting processes which will make the service more 

efficient and effective. From a customer perspective, we expect them to benefit from 

a significant improvement in first time fix, a reduction in waiting times and a service 

more typical of the modern offering. 

 

21) Meanwhile the work continues to repair & maintain the Council’s stock, with excellent 

performance achieved in gas servicing (99.7% compliance in routine maintenance, 

and results in the high 90s for satisfaction with repairs & quality of maintenance). 

Construction 

22) In 2018/19 over £4m in projects were delivered as part of planned or capital works 

programmes. In 19/20 we expect to more than double this, with a number of projects 

underway. These include Floyds Row and the Museum of Oxford. Also, in line with  

previous programmes, there are significant orders placed by the Client for pre-paint 

joinery, Disabled Adaptations work is increasing and we hope to secure our first new 

build project with 8 bungalows from the Council’s Housing Company. We have a 

good supply chain in place with one or two more key hires required to make sure we 

can deliver the expanded programme successfully.  

Environment & Infrastructure 

23) Car parks - Year to date car park income is marginally better than budget 
expectation, with the surplus being generated across the suburban and Park and 
P&R locations. City centre car parks have seen a decline in usage, which can be 
attributed to Westgate Car Park.  
 

24) We are progressing the Section 101 agreement with County Council regarding 
operations at Water Eaton and Thornhill Park and rides including TUPE implications. 

 

14



 

7 
 

25)  Highways & engineering - have commenced the annual road surfacing programme 
including surface dressing at various locations across the City.  
 

26) Recycling & Waste - We are also progressing negotiations regarding disposal costs 
with a view to extending the current arrangement for two years from 1 October 2019. 
In addition we have successfully negotiated a two year extension regarding the 
disposal of dry mixed recyclate (DMR). The negotiations do however continue to 
highlight the budgetary challenges associated with disposal costs. 
 

27) Due to the global challenges associated with recycling outlets there is more intense 
scrutiny regarding the quality and level of contamination associated with DMR. As a 
result we have had a number of loads rejected that creates a cost burden and 
impacts on recycling figures. We are taking a zero tolerance approach regarding 
contamination with customers and residents with action plans in place and the 
approach being communicated via public and social media.  
 

28) Streetscene - With the new hot jet wash now operational the street paving washing 
is more effective with reduced levels of staining (with customers concerned about this 
/ chewing gum). The team are also coping well with multiple events including the 
daily “Trashings” in Merton Street, Cowley Road Carvinal, etc. In fact close working 
between Streets & Waste teams enabled ODS to deliver a comprehensive waste 
management service for the event – with 5 Aspire colleagues gaining valuable 
experience which should help them with future job opportunities.  
 

29) The graffiti programme is working well with monthly updates provided to local 
Councillors. 
 

30) We have introduced full time attendants and both Market Street and Gloucester 
Green public toilet facilities between 10am and 6pm in order to reduce the level of 
anti-social behaviour and improve cleanliness standards. The impact is yet to be 
determined but we will review the change in service to ensure it is effective.  
 

31) Motor Transport - We’ve looked at how motor transport is run, with logistics experts 
Unipart. There are several opportunities for revised practice and quick wins so we 
can further improve and enhance the service offered. Central to this is our growing 
expertise in electric vehicle maintenance and the contribution we can make in 
installing a network of EV chargers.  

 
Health & Safety 

 
32) ODS continues to improve on its safety performance against previous years 

and builds on the impetus gained in 18/19. The Board receives a quarterly 
report on Health & Safety looking at leading and lagging indicators, compliance 
issues and any initiatives programmed in. 
 

33) The new working year saw a refresh of the Organisation’s Health and 
Safety Policy which incorporated revisions on the emphasis on the health 
and wellbeing aspects of safety, more focus on near miss reporting and 
the value this activity can have and more detailed responsibilities and 
accountabilities related to each level of management within the business. 
 

34) We successfully retained our health and safety accreditations with both 
Safe Contractor and Constructionline and a recent initiative by the HSE 
on construction safety resulted in one of our departments being paid a 
visit on site. This delivered a positive result in our operational 

15



 

8 
 

management with the Inspector finding no issues with our approach to 
risk management and congratulating our Operatives on their level of risk 
awareness and control. 
 

35) In terms of incidents resulting in injury and lost time this first quarter has 
seen a dip in our otherwise positive performance with 48 injury related 
incidents being reported.  11 of these incidents resulted in 98.5 days lost 
with 5 reports being submitted under RIDDOR for over 7 day absences.  

 

36) Our trend analysis and focus remains on reducing injuries relating to manual 

handling, slip trip incidents and being struck by or coming into contact with 

substances or objects. These have lost 11, 48 and 10 days respectively in this 

quarter. 

 

37) A recent external audit conducted by BDO into the Health and Safety management 

within the business resulted in us being rated as substantial in both the design and 

operational effectiveness of the system. This is a great result and recognises the 

hard work and level of awareness throughout the business. 

 

38) Positive activity continues on the findings from the safety climate survey conducted in 

the last quarter of the previous period with substantial and sustained efforts going 

into changing perceptions about our level of commitment to Health and Safety 

excellence. Beliefs and behaviours are being challenged in this regard across the 

business and the green shoots of change are beginning to show in both attitudes and 

awareness. 

 
2018 /19 – 2021/22 Business Plan Update 
 
Four objectives were agreed as set out at Appendix 1: 
 

 Deliver the Council’s MTFP requirement for ODS – ODS delivered the 18/19 
MTFP requirement. 19/20 sees an additional £150k increase and the ODS 
Executive Team have identified the sources of this increase, predominantly  
through increasing targets in construction and highways & engineering 

 Drive efficiency in Building Services – the programme is advancing rapidly 
and in accordance with the plan. Whilst it is a whole system change in the back 
office, the front line and customer service will benefit from more efficient 
programming, increase in first time fix, more effective diagnostics, quicker 
response times, etc. The customer will benefit, the operatives more empowered 
to deliver the service and the changes will release capacity to deliver other work 

 Maximise the work for ODS from Oxford City Council – ODS have recruited 
the necessary experience to direct delivery of a pipeline of capital schemes and 
new build housing. Council colleagues are working with ODS to put together a 
suitable programme for the next 4 years.  

 Build an organization fit to deliver the Council’s ambition – ODS now has a 
leadership team in place which can run services but now also has the skills and 
experience to work more strategically on cross-cutting initiatives. This team will 
drive the delivery of the new Business Plan which identifies how ODS will 
significantly increase returns to the Council as well as create a more modern & 
mobile workforce – benefiting from the associated improvements in efficiency 
and customer service which will be achieved through that.  

 

16



 

9 
 

Appendix 1 - Year 2 Business Plan Objectives – Progress 
 
 

 

Objectives Core services Revenue Growth Efficiency in 
Building Services 

Maximise work from 
OCC 

Build ODS 

Culture Evolution – embed Mission, Aims & Values 

Challenges Balancing commercial / 
public service work 
Maintaining and improving 
customer service 
Managing the public 
relations  

 

Need to ensure year 2 
MTFP is delivered  
How to deliver sustainable 
growth 
Robust financial & 
management information 

 

Changing traditional 
R&M function into 
modern & mobile 
service operation 

 

Stakeholders views of ODS 
capacity / capability 
Commissioning of works 
fragmented 

 

Lack of commercial processes / 
resources / experience 
Sub-optimal IT systems & 
infrastructure 
Finance, HR & ICT leadership 
lacking 
Depot portfolio not future 
proofed & inefficient 

Solutions Implement service / support 
contracts / SLAs / Client 
functions 
Gain a better 
understanding of customer 
service 
 

 

Develop a plan for the 
future 
Ensure clear financial 
targets with regular 
reviews / adjustments 
Revise ODS procurement 
strategy 
Revise/develop the MI 
suite to drive better 
decision making and 
cascade across business 
B2B – clear sales / 
resourcing plan in place 

 

Introduce Building 
services major change 
programme 

 

Identify and secure key 
resources / partnerships 
with construction industry 
experience 
Agree/implement a shared 
& smoothed building works 
programme  
Contribute to revising the 
works commissioning 
process 
Get visibility of all potential 
works to ODS from concept 
stage  

 

Fully establish the commercial 
arm 
 
Establish and resource change 
programme / business support 
 
Depot rationalisation project 
commissioned 

 

Highlights this 
period 

April / May financial and 
service performance in line 
with expectations 
 
Began shaping 3 year 
service review 
 
Client function review & 
budget process planned 
 
Head of Customer 
Engagement interviews 
 
 
 
 

Business Plan refresh 
agreed in principle – basis 
is 70% efficiency 30% 
growth. OBC funding 
agreement decision June 
19 
 
Financial & MI work in 
progress 

TOM complete, staff 
consultation kicked off 
and now live, AQL go 
live October 2019. 
Small number of posts 
at risk 
 
Supply chain tender 
constructed following 
market / service 
appraisal 
 
Gearing up comms. 
TUs on side. 
Transition plan? 
 
 

Business Plan contingent 
on a £71m programme 
across 4 years –some of 
which is HRA pass through 
 
Pipeline review at ODS LT 
planned for June. Risk of 
Council not being able to 
resource a smooth pipeline 
of works for ODS. 
Mitigation through other 
opportunities e.g. new 
homes 
 

‘Heads of’ roles all appointed to 
bar one. PMO resourcing still an 
issue. EV Strategy resourcing in 
place 
 
Focus is on business plan 
refresh and the business case 
supporting it. Current BP rolled 
on 
 
Support Services review under 
development.  
 
Line of sight re culture change 
emerging following OD / HR 
Director appointment 
 

17



 

10 
 

Appendix 2 – ODS Q1 performance data 

  

PI Owner 
Latest Data 

Comments 
Target Result 

Parks and Open Spaces 

Satisfaction with Parks and Open 
Spaces (LG inform) 

Stuart 
Fitzsimmons 

84.00% 84.00%   

Number of Parks with Green Flag Status 
Stuart 

Fitzsimmons 
5 Parks 6 Parks   

% of sites passing LAMS 
Stuart 

Fitzsimmons 
      

Streetscene 

Percentage of streets with dog fouling 
that fall below Grade B (YTD) 

Bruce Thompson 5.00% 0.56% 

Year to date 1 out of 177 streets 
inspected were below grade B.  In 
June none of the 38 streets were 
below grade B. 

NI 195a Percentage of streets with litter 
levels that fall below Grade B (YTD) 

Bruce Thompson 1.75% 3.95% 

Year to date 7 out of 177 streets 
inspected were below grade B.  In 
June 1 of the 38 streets were 
below grade B. 

NI 195b Percentage of streets with 
detritus levels falling below Grade B 
(YTD) 

Bruce Thompson 3.00% 12.99% 

Year to date 23 out of 177 streets 
inspected were below grade B.  In 
June 4 of the 38 streets were 
below grade B. 

NI 195c Percentage of streets with 
Graffiti levels falling below Grade B 
(YTD) 

Bruce Thompson 1.00% 0.56% 

Year to date 1 out of 177 streets 
inspected were below grade B.  In 
June 1 of the 38 streets were 
below grade B. 

NI 195d Percentage of streets with fly 
posting levels falling below Grade B 
(YTD) 

Bruce Thompson 1.00% 0.56% 

Year to date 1 out of 177 streets 
inspected was below grade B.  In 
June none of the 38 streets were 
below grade B. 

Waste and Recycling 

Kg of household waste per head     69 kgs   

NI191 - Residual waste per household 
(YTD) 

  
108.00 

kgs 
82.30 kgs   

NI192 % Household waste recycled and 
composted (YTD) 

  50.00% 53.99%   

Highways and Engineering 

% Customer Satisfaction with larger 
assessed maintenance schemes 

Shaun Hatton 85.00% 100.00%   

% satisfaction with line painting Shaun Hatton 85.00%     

% catergory 1 works completed in time / 
% of 24 hour defects completed on time 

Shaun Hatton 98.00% 100.00%   

% catergory 2 works completed in time / 
% of 48 hour defects completed on time 

Shaun Hatton 80.00% 100.00%   

% catergory 3 works completed in time Shaun Hatton   100.00%   

Finance 

ECN notices cancelled as error should 
not exceed 2% of all issues YTD 

Jason Munro 2.00% 0.22% 
3608 issues with 8 cancelled as 
issue error = 
0.22% 

Car park monitoring and utilisation Jason Munro 
100 On 
Target 

100 On 
Target 

  

Resource, supply and deploy the optimal 
number of enforcement officers to 
optimise compliance 

Jason Munro 99.00% 100.00%   

18



 

11 
 

Sickness 

Cost of working time lost due to sickness Human Resources   £110,671.98   

Proportion of sickness that is long term Human Resources   50.70%   

Proportion of sickness that is short term Human Resources   49.30%   

Staff turnover Human Resources   5.00%   

Voids 

Average cost per void Steve Carter £3,200.00     

Void Contractor Turnaround time 
(HouseMark definition) 

Steve Carter 17 Days 15.87 Days 
14 Standard voids completed in 
June + 13 Standard voids requiring 
major works. 27 in total 

Voids key to key re-let time Ian Henwood       

Planned Operations 

Number of bathrooms installed for in 
house team YTD 

Steve Carter 
51 

Bathrooms 
57 

Bathrooms 

20 bathrooms completed this 
period against a target of 17 which 
means YTD we are slightly over 
(+6) the 1st Quarter target of 51 
bathrooms completed. 

Decent Homes Kitchens completed by 
contract operations team YTD 

Steve Carter 
60 

Kitchens 
51 Kitchens 

13 Kitchens completed this month 
against a targert of 21. At 51 
kitchens completed YTD we are 
slightly below (-9) the origional 
profile of 60 kitchens completed in 
the first Quarter. 

Responsive Repairs 

Tenant Satisfaction with repairs services Ian Henwood 95.00% 98.00% 
Total Contacted 1957, Phone 
Feedback 878, Text Feedback 50, 
Response Rate 47% 

Percentage appointments kept Ian Henwood 99.00% 99.60% 
1267 appointment kept of the 1279 
appointments made. 12 missed. 

Percentage post-inspection quality 
feedback 

Ian Henwood 5.00% 5.70% 
40 inspections from the 690 
routine repairs completed. 

Percentage repairs appointments made 
(D2D) 

Ian Henwood 95.00% 95.66% 
1279 appointments made from the 
1337 eligible jobs. 

% Emergency Responsive Repairs 
completed on time (Category E) YTD 

Ian Henwood 99.60% 99.84% 
1282 emergency repairs 
completed in date of the 1284 
completed. 2 missed YTD. 

% Urgent Responsive Repairs 
completed on time (Category A) YTD 

Ian Henwood 99.00% 99.39% 
1143 urgent repairs completed in 
date of the 1150 completed. 7 late 
YTD. 

% Routine Responsive Repairs 
completed on time YTD 

Ian Henwood 96.50% 96.93% 
2278 Routine repairs completed in 
date, 2350 repairs completed. 72 
late YTD. 

Number of repairs jobs completed Ian Henwood   1648 Jobs   

% post inspections passing inspection Ian Henwood   100.00% 
40 inspections completed all v 
good 

Responsive Repairs - Average job cost Ian Henwood   £94.91   

Gas Team 

Percentage gas servicing completed 
YTD 

Ian Henwood 27.84% 25.80% 662 services completed in June 

Percentage of gas services in date Ian Henwood 99.00% 99.70%   

% Emergency gas repairs completed on 
time (Category E) YTD 

Ian Henwood 99.50% 100.00% 
22 emergency repairs completed 
on time 

% Urgent gas repairs completed on time 
(Category A) YTD 

Ian Henwood 99.00% 99.50% 
199 Urgent repairs completed on 
time, 1 late 

% Routine gas repairs completed on 
time YTD 

Ian Henwood 98.30% 100.00% 
224 Routine repairs completed on 
time 

Gas installations - Number of full 
upgrades 

Ian Henwood 
28 

Upgrades 
24 

Upgrades 
  

19



 

12 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Gas installations - number of part 
upgrades 

Ian Henwood 
135 

Upgrades 
154 

Upgrades 
  

Electrical Quality Control 

Number of electrical surveys carried out 
YTD 

Ian Henwood 
528 

Surveys 
504 Surveys   

Number of rewires YTD Ian Henwood 
28 

Rewires 
29 Rewires   

Estate officers 

Percentage communal areas passing 
internal checks (10% check) 

Bruce Thompson 96.00%     

20



 

13 
 

Appendix 3 – Financial Performance Q1 – Commercial in Confidence – Part 2 Paper 

Private and confidential 

 

21



This page is intentionally left blank



 

. 

 

To: Oxford City Housing Ltd Shareholder Meeting 

Date: Shareholder 23 July 2019 

Report of: Richard Connolly Interim MD Company Director and 
Board Chair 

Title of Report:  Progressing the strategic future direction of the 
Council’s Group of Housing Companies and the 
2018/19 Annual Review 
 

Summary and recommendations 

Purpose of 
report: 

To update the Shareholder on progress of the strategic review 
and revised Business Plan for the OCHL group of companies. 
To receive the 2018/19 Annual report and audited Financial 
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019. 

Recommendation(s):That the OCHL Shareholder resolves to: 

1.  Note the progress of the strategic review and revised Business Plan for the 
OCHL Group of companies and to seek support for the proposed plan of 
action. 

2.  Note the Housing Group Annual Review (Appendix 1); 

3.  Note the audited Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year 
ended 31 March 2019 (Appendix 2) 

4.  Note the Housing Group Delivery Programme (Appendix 4). 

 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 Housing Group Annual Review 2018/19 

Appendix 2 Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 
31 March 2019.  

Appendix 3 Confidential information.  

Appendix 4 Housing Group Delivery Programme. 

 
Introduction and background 
 
1. The Council’s City Executive Board on the 17 March 2016 agreed to set up a group 

of housing companies (OCHL) now being OCHL (Group) the parent, OCHL 
(Investment) and OCHL (Development) to be wholly owned by the Council with the 
primary aim of building and owning social housing. This was in response to changes 
in Government policy namely the introduction of four years of rent reductions and a 
high value asset levy, which taken together severely restricted the Council’s ability to 

23

Agenda Item 5a



continue with its ambitious council house building programme funded from the 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) The OCHL Shareholder has previously approved 
a development and acquisition programme and business plan to deliver 572 new 
homes over the period 2018 to 2026. This includes the purchase from the Council by 
OCHL of the social rented homes being developed at Barton Park by Barton Oxford 
LLP (BOLLP). 

 
2. Recent government policy changes have removed restrictions on the Council’s 

ability to borrow within the HRA. This necessitated an initial review of the approach 
previously adopted by the Council and OCHL with respect to affordable housing 
delivery and subsequent on-going management.  

 
3. The objectives of the initial review by the Council have been to: 

 Maintain the existing social housing new build programme 

 Maximise the potential to expand and accelerate the programme using the new 
borrowing flexibilities 

 Protect the assumed position in the Medium Term Loan Plan (MTPF) and 
explore the potential for an increased contribution from OCHL, if financially 
prudent and affordable for the company 

 Provide a more efficient and coherent model for the management of the Council’s 
stock. 

 
4. In May 2019 the OCHL Board, Council’s Cabinet and Shareholder approved a 

significant change in Housing Company Group policy and the updated Business 
Plan to reflect this change. In summary, that OCHL continues with the current 
development programme of: 

 

 207 mixed tenure properties including external sales. Together with a funded 
trickle transfer of 5 voids each year for the first 5 years, on a case by case basis, 
to create larger units and/or new units, where land footprint allowed. However the 
Council will purchase the affordable housing (Section 106) and additional homes, 
where agreed, with HRA borrowing and available Grant funding. This is instead 
of the affordable housing being retained by the Company. This activity is 
conducted by OCHL (Development) Ltd 

 Acquisition of the 354 social rented units at Barton Park (Ph. 1 is nearing 
completion and to date 35 of the 95 homes are completed). No change to policy 
is planned for this project which will deliver homes over many years to come. 
This activity is by OCHL (Investment) Ltd. 

 
5. However, the current Business Plan for OCHL (Development) Ltd is heavily 

focussed on the first few years. Therefore a review of the Group’s activities is 
underway to assess its potential as a going concern, the future direction and 
capacity in terms of a sound financial position, growth potential and governance.  

 
6. The Council and OCHL is continuing to review how OCHL can accelerate delivery of 

affordable housing, explore the development of alternative tenures to meet housing 
need and support economic growth, as well as meeting MTFP commitments. OCHL 
has appointed an Interim MD to lead a 6 month review feeding into the 2020/21 
budget setting, with the agreed following objectives: 

 

24



 Examine the resources and expertise currently available to OCHL and how it is 
organised and make recommendation on what is needed to improve the pace of 
programme delivery 

 Develop a delivery programme for the next batch of Council sites that have been 
identified as having potential to be delivered by OCHL 

 Develop a viable proposition for alternative tenure offer in addition to social rent, 
including an affordable Private Rented Sector offer 

 Given the finite number of Council owned development sites appraise 
opportunities for the expansion of OCHL’s activity, including the potential 
purchase of land for development, commission the required work to identify 
potential sites and develop costed proposals for these sites 

 Explore delivery vehicle options to make recommendations for appropriate 
partnership arrangements and subject to agreement, take forward the 
development of the partnership(s) 

 Develop proposals and make recommendations for appropriate governance of 
OCHL, including additional Board Directors and clarity about the relationships 
with stakeholders 

 Develop an agreed planned approach to support the Council’s ambition of 
achieving net zero carbon by 2030, make recommendations on specification, and 
cost modelling and financial viability. 

 
Review of the Business Plan 
 
7. The intended outcome of the 6 months review will result in a new 10 year Business 

Plan for OCHL. The following work strands are now being progressed with the 
timelines for completion as shown in the table: 

 

Work strand May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Comments 

 
Examine 
existing 
resources and 
expertise to 
accelerate 
delivery 

  
 

     Review of immediate 
requirements now completed. 

 Internally recruiting 18 month 
secondment for Strategic 
Finance Manager to lead on 
Finance for the Housing Group 

 Recruiting two permanent 
Development Managers to lead 
on land purchases and new 
projects.  

 Facilitates capacity, build team, 
skills set and volume. 

Develop a 
delivery 
programme of 
the next batch 
of council sites 
potentially for 
OCHL 

       Programme identified and 
coordinated with Planning 
Service 

 See next table for detail. 

Alternative  
tenure offer 

       Currently scoping the 

25



development of ‘Oxford Living 
Rent’ an Affordable Rent to buy 
model with Grant funding -for 
local working families unable to 
access traditional social 
housing or low cost home 
ownership. 

 Intermediate rent on a form of 
Tenancy with the planned 
intention to purchase their 
home after 5+ years. 

 Affordability criteria.  

 Trowers Solicitors are advising 
on tenancies & RtB. 

Develop an 
expanded 
pipeline not 
limited to 
council-owned 
development 
sites 

       Early progression of a formal 
programme and Heads of 
Terms with One Public Estate- 
Health & County: re-provision 
and release of sites for housing 
e.g. East Oxford. 

 Identified priority Draft LP sites 
with Planning Service. 
Approaching 
vendors/agents/developers to 
scope potential and viability. 
Also use these to model 
‘template’ schemes for later 
years. 

 Initiating exploratory 
discussions and then later 
timely promotion of OCHL as a 
housing delivery partner for 
strategic /key sites e.g. 
potentially Diamond Place, 
OXWED/future sites and 
Grenoble Rd (S.Ox). 

 Meetings in progress with West 
Oxon and planned for Cherwell, 
Vale WH & S Oxon to scope 
opportunities for joint working 
and priorities for Oxford. 

Explore JV 
models and 
procurement 
of 
partnerships 

       Seeking external specialist 
advice on scoping of model(s) 
and subsequent soft market 
testing- procurement 
underway 

 Meetings planned with key 

26



Developers/ HAs to understand 
their cross –sector partnership 
models across England. 

Develop and  
recommend 
Governance 
arrangements 
and board 
membership 

       Reviewing board membership 
in similar comparable 
organisations. 

 Reviewing board skills and 
requirements. 

 Consider recruitment routes. 

 Make recommendations to 
Board, Cabinet and 
Shareholder. 

Develop an 
agreed 
planned 
approach to 
achieve the 
Council’s 
ambition of 
net zero 
carbon 
housing 

       Minimum target of 40% carbon 
reduction and 50% carbon 
reduction ahead of 2026 
currently set, in line with draft 
Local Plan on existing planning 
applications/consented/or 
uncontracted new schemes 

 Currently researching different 
approaches to achieve lower 
and net-zero carbon homes e.g. 
MMC/ Fabric-first PV/Passiv.  

 Specialist advice commissioned 
to ensure CML mortgage 
availability, supply chain, cost 
and replication. 

 Then agreeing specification 
requirements and costing for 
scheme viability/deliverable 
S106 provision and financial 
impact on BP. Reviewing by 
tenure and procurement 
approaches. 

Business Plan 
review for 10 
year 
development 
activity 
 

       Complete Business Plan review 
by mid-September for Council 
20/21 budget process, 
reporting during September & 
October, for planned cycle of 
approvals in November 19 – 
Feb’20. 

 
Current programme 

 
8. The table below summarises progress with the development sites. In addition, so far 

35 of the 95 social rented units in the first phase of Barton Park have been handed 
over. Phase 3 (Redrow) is currently moving ahead, with potentially 83 social rent 
homes. Completion of initial homes are anticipated from Summer 2020. 

27



 

Scheme Number of 
homes-
Total 

Market 
sale 

Market 
units being 
sold to HRA 
for 
‘additional’ 

Affordable 
Housing 

(split 
Rent/SO) 

S`106 

Affordable 
Housing 
split :  

Social Rent 
SR. 

Affordable 
Rent AR. 

Shared 
Ownership 
SO.  

Comments Estimated 
Completion 

Rose Hill 43 (all 
affordable) 

0 0 18 SR 

25 SO 

Planning 
permission 
obtained – 
build 
contract 
signed with 
Feltham 

Nov 2020 

Warren 
Crescent 

10 (all 
affordable) 

0 0 4 SR 

6 AR 

Planning 
permission 
obtained – 
build 
contract 
signed with 
Leighfield 

July 2020 

Elsfield Hall 
and 
Cumberlege 
Close 

35 (18 
affordable) 

17 0 15 SR 

3 SO 

Planning 
permission 
obtained. 
Procurement 
of contractor 
underway 

Dec 2020 

Between 
Towns Road 

38 (19 
affordable) 

19 TBC-see 
comments 
box 

16 SR 

2 AR 

1 SO 

Planning 
permission 
obtained. 
Procurement 
of contractor 
underway. 
Potential sale 
of 19 OM 
homes to 
HRA to be 
considered as 
part of 

Dec 2020 

28



Revised 
Business Plan 
in September 
19 

Harts Close 2 (both 
affordable) 

0 0 1 SR 

1 SO 

Planning 
permission 
obtained – 
price being 
negotiated 
with 
contractor 

June 2020 

Lucy Faithfull 
House 

36 (18 
affordable) 

18 0 15 SR 

3 AR 

Pre planning 
application 
underway 

Nov 2021 

Underhill 
Circus 

36 (18 
affordable) 

18 TBC –see 
comments 
box 

16 SR 

2 AR 

Pre planning 
application 
underway. 
Potential sale 
of 19 OM 
homes to 
HRA to be 
considered as 
part of 
revised 
Business Plan 
in September 
’19. 

Oct 2021 

Edgecombe 
Drive 

7 (all 
affordable) 

0 0 3 SR 

4 SO 

Pre planning 
application 
underway 

Jan 2021 

Bracegirdle, 
Mortimer, 
Broad Oak 

8 (7 
affordable) 

1 0 7 SR Planning 
permission 
obtained, 
tenders 
received and 
being 
assessed 

Sep 2020 

 
 

Developing a delivery programme of the next batch of council sites potentially for 
OCHL 

 
9. A detailed review of the potential pipeline of Council sites has been undertaken by 

the Development, Housing and Planning teams co-ordinated through project groups, 
as part of the wider review of deliverable sites across the City. Due to the 

29



commercially sensitive nature of this information, this has been reported separately 
at Appendix 3 as a confidential item.  
 

Annual Review and Annual Report and Accounts 
 
10. The Annual Review for 2018/19 is attached at Appendix 1. 
 
11. The Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 are 

attached at Appendix 2. 
 
Revised business plan 
 
12. The revised ambitious business plan is being developed as part of the strategic 

review along the same timeline as the Council’s 2020/21 budget process. 
 
Housing Group Delivery Plan 
 
13. The current programme, as detailed earlier in this report, is explained in greater 

detail at Appendix 4 for further information. 
 

 

 

 

Report author Richard Connolly 

Telephone  07771381847 

e-mail  rconnolly@oxford.gov.uk 

 

 

30



Registered no. 10212716 

 

1 | P a g e  

 

----------- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2018/19  
 

 

 

OXFORD CITY HOUSING LIMITED 

  

ANNUAL 

REPORT 

2018/19 

31



Registered no. 10212716 

 

2 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

Contents 
Strategic Report 

Overview 

 
Strategy 

 
Performance 

 
Corporate Governance 

 
Financial Statements 

 
 

3   Chairman's Letter 

5   A Volitile Year 

6    Our Strategy 

9    Measuring our Progress 

10    Development and Financial Performance 

14    Stress Testing 

15    Managing Risk 

17    Board of Directors 

18  Estimated Year-End Financial Statements 

22   Notes to the Financial Statements 

Delivering new affordable housing for Oxford’s 

residents

32



Registered no. 10212716 

 

3 | P a g e  

 

 

Chairman’s Letter 

 

 

 

Dear Shareholder 

It’s been a challenging and ultimately positive 12 months: Board member changes, a 

delivery vehicle for the Oxfordshire Growth Deal, scoping an OCHL application for 

significant Government policy changes and finally managing local planning policy 

compliance issues to progress the current delivery programme.   Last but not least, 

meeting our financial performance obligations to our shareholder and the Council’s 

Medium Term Financial Plan. 

 

Through all this increased activity we have continued to ensure we review our plans 

and performance requirements so that we continually meet expectations with growing 

confidence and pace. Whilst it’s fair to say all these challenges and national 

government interventions impacted on the immediate planned progress, I’m 

nonetheless pleased to say OCHL is still very much at the front and centre of 

influencing, enabling, delivering and forward planning key housing projects and 

programmes that Oxford City residents desperately need and this is a role we cherish, 

respect and strive to grow and to build upon. 

 

Strengthening Organisational Capability and Development 

As we draw a line under 2018-19 we embark into the new financial year with OCHL’s 

place as a critical delivery vehicle for new housing in Oxford and beyond. Firmly 

established with the act of making our first executive appointment, namely Richard 

“During a year in which we have witnessed significant 

changes in Government policy and strategic direction for  

the social housing new build agenda within the public 

sector, OCHL has continued to demonstrate its increasing 

role to Oxford City Council and its residents in both 

delivering what our community needs and contributing to 

the long term  financial position of our shareholder.”

33

http://occweb/intranet/users/stephen-clarke


Registered no. 10212716 

 

4 | P a g e  

 

Connolly as Interim Managing Director, together with £9.5m of development contracts 

being signed off just before the end of the financial year and a continued confirmation 

of delivering financial returns for our shareholder. 

 

Clear Purpose 

Finally, I think it is important for OCHL’s success that we have a clear purpose – one 

that is strongly linked to the city’s needs. Our clear purpose is to deliver housing in 

Oxford to ultimately improve people’s lives. Our city more than ever before needs 

significant numbers of new affordable housing for the growth of the region to meet 

expectations over the next 5 to 10 years and beyond. To help meet these challenges 

we have to be financially strong and make sure we continue to be an attractive 

investment and deliver on our performance obligations. I look forward to working with 

Richard and the existing team as we advance the housing provision in the city, 

delivering through our strategy and emerging further growth plans, guided by our 

values and inspired by our purpose. I also look forward to hearing from our 

shareholder, understanding and delivering on your aspirations and continuing to 

reward your trust and confidence in OCHL. 

 

 

 

 

 

Stephen Clarke 

Chairman 

April 2019 

 

 

 

34



Registered no. 10212716 

 

5 | P a g e  

 

A Volatile Year 

Government Policy 

Whilst it’s fair to say the Government may have had to prioritise its activities over the 

past 12 months, this has not prevented significant swings in previous Government held 

thinking with regards to the social housing agenda. One has to say most have been in 

the positive namely, eventual removal of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) debt cap 

from firstly encouraging additional borrowing bids, additional SHG nationally for new 

initiatives, the Oxfordshire Growth Deal finally being signed off with resources for new 

additional social housing dwellings being released, consultation of greater flexibilities 

in the use of capital receipts (although outcome of revised proposals not as yet 

published) and certainty with rents, at least for the next 5 years at CPI + 1%. 

 

That said not all was good news for instance the proposed move for local authority 

rents to be governed by the Social Housing Regulator (SHR). This has removed 

indefinitely the possibility of local authorities raising social rents to acceptable and 

Government approved higher levels, even for those on HB or UC. For Oxford City 

Council this has limited their HRA’s long term future financial strength that in turn 

could have financed additional borrowing for properties provided by OCHL. 

 

Local Housing Review 

Such were the changes happening nationally that it was only fair Oxford City Council 

reviewed its requirement generally for local housing companies per se. As such the 

Council commissioned an external assessment of its housing agenda that extended to 

reviewing planning performance, local land availability, partnership working and the 

regional economy and growth expectations. I’m pleased to say the conclusions 

identified a critical and continuing role for OCHL in meeting the expectations of the 

Council and its wider partnerships both now and for many years to come. 

 

A new strategy, progressing a more dynamic BP and significant on-site progress 

continues, as well as aspirations to strengthen and widen the experience, knowledge 

and capabilities of the company’s Board and Executive. 

35



Registered no. 10212716 

 

6 | P a g e  

 

Our Strategy 

 

36



Registered no. 10212716 

 

7 | P a g e  

 

Strategic Review 

The regeneration aspirations had been put on hold until suitable sites and schemes were identified and this continues to be 

the case. Barton acquisitions began towards the end of the 2018-19 financial year and the HRA transfer initiative has seen 10 

units move across to OCHL during the first 3 years. 

 

The new borrowing powers afforded to Council’s under the reviews by Government over the past 12 months has resulted in 

the prospect of further transfers from the Council diminishing in future years, although potentially not completely as 

opportunities will still exist but confirmed on a scheme by scheme basis. 

 

Going forward, by far the biggest change has been the movement away from managing the sub-market rented 

accommodation from the series of development schemes planned over the forthcoming years. Previously the company had 

planned to manage and maintain long term all the social rented, shared ownership and affordable rented properties from its 

development programme along with those acquired from Barton and the Council’s HRA. However, only those already 

transferred as at the end of 2018-19 from the Council and the 354 Barton acquisitions will be managed by OCHL. All other 

properties will be sold either via private sales or to the Council’s HRA, that is to say all social rented, affordable rented and 

shared ownership dwellings built by the company will now be bought by the Council’s HRA for them to be able to secure 

government grant, assist in the Oxfordshire Growth Deal, be managed as part of their normal housing stock and let at sub-

market rents. The removal of the HRA debt cap allows this to now take place. 

 

Thus, OCHL will continue to have a large amount of activity being undertaken in our Development company subsidiary with 

only previously transferred HRA and all current and future Barton dwellings to be managed within our Investment company 

subsidiary. 

37



Registered no. 10212716 

 

8 | P a g e  

 

The above changes in strategic outlook are now reflected in all subsequent scheme performance reports and in the long term 

BP projections. In the following table, all properties are shown as Open sale (OS) to reflect the strategic direction from the 

company’s perspective. These homes are either (i) market housing to be sold on the open market or to the Council (as 

additionality) and (ii) the Section 106 Affordable housing to be sold to the Council. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

38



Registered no. 10212716 

 

9 | P a g e  

 

Property Mix 

Activity Original (Feb 2017) BP Property Mix Revised (Feb 2019) BP Property Mix Movement in BP Property Mix 

 SR AR SO OS Total SR AR SO OS Total SR AR SO OS Total 
Barton                
Phase 1 95 - - - 95 95 - - - 95 - - - - - 
Phase 2 259 - - - 259 259 - - - 259 - - - - - 

Sub-Total 354 - - - 354 354 - - - 354 - - - - - 

Development                
Cumberlege 5 6 - - 11 Cumberlege merged with Elsefield 
Elsefield 7 4 - 6 17 - - - 35 35 (12) (10) - 29 7 
Harts Close - - 2 - 2 - - - 2 2 - - (2) 2 - 
Rose Hill 16 17 9 - 42 - - - 43 43 (16) (17) (9) 43 1 
Between Towns 
Road 

16 5 4 15 40 - - - 38 38 (16) (5) (4) 23 (2) 

Underhill Circus 16 4 - 21 41 - - - 37 37 (16) (4) - 16 (4) 
Warren Crescent - 10 - - 10 - - - 10 10 - (10) - 10 - 
Lucy Faithful House n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a - - - 36 36 - - - 36 36 
Edgecombe Drive n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a - - - 7 7 - - - 7 7 

Bracegirdle, 
Mortimer, Broad 
Oak 

 
n/a 

 
n/a 

 
n/a 

 
n/a 

 
n/a 

 
- 
 

 
- 

 
- 

 
8 

 
8 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
8 

 
8 

Sub-Total 60 46 15 42 163 - - - 216 216 (60) (46) (15) 174 53 

HRA Acquisitions                
Combined Schemes 200 - - - 200 10 - - - 10 (190) - - - (190) 

Sub-Total 200 - - - 200 10 - - - 10 (190) - - - (190) 

                

TOTAL 614 46 15 42 717 364 - - 216 580 (250) (46) (15) 174 (137) 

TOTAL (%) 85.6 6.4 2.1 5.9 100 62.8 0.0 40.0 37.2 100      

39



Registered no. 10212716 

 

10 | P a g e  

 

Measuring Our Progress 

Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s) 

The adopted KPI’s provide a balanced set of metrics that give emphasis to both 

financial and non-financial measures. These help the Board and Executive MD assess 

performance against our strategic priorities and business plans, with non-financial 

metrics playing a useful role as leading indicators of future performance. OCHL’s Board 

and management will use these measures to evaluate operating performance and 

make financial, strategic and operating decisions. 

 

Ethical and Social Responsibility Policy 

OCHL is committed to adopting and aligning our activities in line with Oxford City 

Council’s key priority objective of a cleaner and greener Oxford. 

 

Our construction activities will have reference to incorporating where we can and in 

the realms of affordability, the concept of sustainability at its core and OCHL believes 

we can certainly contribute to the low carbon commitments OCC have identified with 

the introduction of solar panels on our new build schemes where the opportunity 

exists. 

 

Furthermore, OCHL will request that appropriate focus on waste and recycling 

activities undertaken by our construction partners is evidenced as well as prioritising 

opportunities in our construction design for our tenants and new build customers to 

engage fully with the green agenda. 

 

Development and Financial Performance 

Financial Modelling 

To better understand the process that has been adopted by OCHL to assess the 

viability and long term profitability of its development activity two financial exercises, 

using the Abovo financial modelling software, are undertaken.  

40



Registered no. 10212716 

 

11 | P a g e  

 

Firstly, a “Development” model is assessed for each individual scheme using a number 

of estimated key assumptions relating to: 

 

 Unit Mix 

 Rents and Service Charges 

 Capital Costs 

 Grant Income 

 Subsidy 

 Key Dates 

 Unit Handover and Sales 

 Cashflow Timings 

 Discount Rates 

 Interest Rates 

 Inflationary Rates 

 Management Costs 

 

From the above analysis three key measurements for each scheme are compared 

against the agreed company thresholds for each calculation. These are: 

 

Internal Rate of Return (IRR) 
 

Internal rate of return (IRR) is a metric used in capital budgeting to estimate the 

profitability of potential investments. Internal rate of return is a discount rate that 

makes the net present value (NPV) of all cash flows from a particular project equal to 

zero.  OCHL have stated that all its development schemes must reach as a minimum an 

IRR of 4.00%. 

 

Net Present Value (NPV) 
 

Net present value (NPV) is 

the difference between the 

present value of cash inflows and 

the present value of cash 

outflows over a period of time. 

NPV is used in capital budgeting 

NPV 

PYB 

IRR 

41



Registered no. 10212716 

 

12 | P a g e  

 

and investment planning to analyse the profitability of a projected investment or 

project. OCHL have initially just set an NPV threshold of being positive i.e. some 

additional value is created for OCHL as a result of the scheme progressing. 

 

Payback (PYB) 
 

The payback period is the number of years it takes to break even from undertaking the 

initial expenditure. Future cash flows are reviewed and compared to the initial capital 

outlay. OCHL have initially indicated a payback threshold of 40 years, although 

schemes falling just outside this timeframe will not initially be refused. 

 

Dashboard 
 

Armed with the above agreed company development thresholds each individual 

scheme can now be assessed and outputs provided on a dashboard report. 

 

The Dashboard analysis charts several outcomes for each individual scheme, namely: 

 

 

 

42



Registered no. 10212716 

 

13 | P a g e  

 

Development Dashboard Outcomes 

•Scheme IRR 

•Scheme NPV 

•Scheme PYB 
Outputs 

•Cost of land, build costs, oncosts, interest 

• Income from sales, grants, etc. 

Capital Income 
and Costs 

•A timeline profile of scheme borrowing and 
subsequent debt redemption strategy 

Scheme 
Repayment 

•Headline information relating to the scheme e.g. 
number of units etc. Scheme Details 

•Estimated timeline for beginning of Cashflow, 
Start on site, Last Handover etc. Key Dates 

•Type and number of different unit tenures 
provided by scheme Unit Mix 

•Total NPV of each different tenure type 

•Total IRR of each different tenure type  Tenure Types 

43



Registered no. 10212716 

 

14 | P a g e  

 

Financial Performance 
The second financial undertaking is taking each of the approved development models 

for all the schemes and extensions programme and inputting them into the Business 

Plan model to produce a set of combined financial statements over the next 40 years 

to ascertain the profitability and financial position (strength) of OCHL and to gauge as 

to whether it is a good going concern and long term investment. 

 

Other matters that are considered in this analysis include: 

 

 Assumptions; 
o Stock - Future Disposals and Other Income 
o Management Costs - especially those that are non-development 

related e.g. consultancy, SLA’s etc. 
o Repairs and Maintenance 
o Economic - e.g. Funding, Covenant, Taxation etc. 
o Accounting - namely depreciation policy, revaluations, inter-

company transactions etc. 
 

 Workings; 
o Stock - Target Rent Letting rates, RTB numbers 
o Rents – Void Rates, Bad Debts, Uplifts, Arrears etc. 
o Management Costs – drivers, factors, fixed, variable etc. 
o Repairs and Maintenance – drivers, revenue, capital, cyclical etc. 
o Economic – loan types, repayments, accelerated debt redemption, 

interest paid, covenant parameters etc. 
o Accounting – depreciation rates, componentisation, trial balance 

adjustments etc. 
 

 Outputs; 
o Cashflows 
o Financial Statements 
o Dashboard 
o Covenants 
o Scenario Planning 

 

 

44



Registered no. 10212716 

 

15 | P a g e  

 

Stress Testing 

Scenario Planning 

In order to demonstrate robustness in the development and financial performance 

modelling, pushing the boundaries of possible scenarios quickly identifies the 

associated strengths and weaknesses of OCHL’s proposed plans. 

 

The key in managing this is to firstly be able to identify the limiting factors and key 

elements and then to be able to measure them before finally being able to understand 

and compare the overall impact against current expectations. 

 

Again the Abovo products procured by OCHL allows much of the stress testing and 

scenario planning to take place and produced in a format that can be presented to the 

Board for consideration and feedback. 

 

Where needed, alternative strategies are explored for their viability and impact. 

 

It must be stated that as a young and ambitious company with all our financing 

emanating from borrowing the company will initially be highly geared. Our original BP 

indicated the Board’s desire to adopt a strategy of accelerating debt redemption where 

financially possible and affordable. Thus, all surplus resources are focussed in adopting 

this principle of paying down existing debt. 

 

The consequences of being a 100% debt funded entity are that, certainly in the early 

years of our BP, the ability to meet reasonable loan covenant thresholds is difficult. We 

have as such agreed with the Council (our funder) that they can provide a certain 

degree of flexibility and latitude. 

 

 

 

45



Registered no. 10212716 

 

16 | P a g e  

 

Managing Risk 

Risk Categories 

 

46



Registered no. 10212716 

 

17 | P a g e  

 

OCHL manages, monitors and reports on the principal risks and uncertainties that can 

impact our ability to deliver our strategy. 

 

Our present processes and system of internal control that governs how we conduct the 

business of OCHL may be in its infancy given the limited activity undertaken to date but 

we feel it is still fit for purpose and will inevitably grow and become more refined and 

focussed as the OCHL’s activities become greater in number and more complex in 

nature. 

 

The current risk management system adopted is designed to be a consistent and clear 

framework for managing and reporting risks from the group’s operations to the Board. 

The system seeks to avoid incidents and maximize business outcomes by allowing us 

to: 

• Understand the risk environment, identify the specific risks and assess the 

potential exposure for OCHL. 

• Determine how best to deal with these risks to manage overall potential 

exposure. 

• Manage the identified risks in appropriate ways. 

• Monitor and seek assurance of the effectiveness of the management of these 

risks and intervene for improvement where necessary. 

• Report on how significant risks are being managed, monitored, assured and 

the improvements needed are being made. 

 

Risk Process 

We aim for a consistent basis of measuring risk to: 

 

• Establish a common understanding of risks on a like-for-like basis, taking into 

account potential impact and likelihood. 

• Report risks to the current Board. 

• Inform the ranking of specific risk management activities to the Board to 

enable key decisions to be risk informed.  

 

 

47



Registered no. 10212716 

 

18 | P a g e  

 

Board of Directors 

Board Members (2018/19) 

 
In addition there are number of regular Board advisors, namely Alan Wylde 

(Development), David Watt (Finance) and Catherine Phythian (Secretariat). 

 

Board Activity 2018-19 

Name Appointed Resigned 

Jaqueline Yates 03 June 2016 19 June 2018 
Stephen Clarke 03 June 2016 - 
Jane Winfield 01 February 2018 - 
Lindsay Cane 18 January 2017 - 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Stephen 
Clarke (Chair) 

Lindsay Cane 
(Secretary) 

Jane Winfield 
(Director) 

48



Registered no. 10212716 

 

19 | P a g e  

 

 

Group Financial Statements 2018-19 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

The company’s external auditors, Mazar’s, were formally appointed at the 20th March 
2018 Shareholder meeting, on an initial 5 year contract. 

They have completed their audit for the 2018/19 financial year and have again 

provided an unqualified audit opinion. 

 

The following pages, in keeping with the layout as presented previously when 

reporting new Business Plan updates, attempts to display the consolidated financial 

position and performance of the OCHL group for 2018/19. 

 

On behalf of the Board we would like to thank Mazar’s for their continued support and 

work they undertake as our independent auditors and the commentary and guidance 

they have provided in this role. We value their extensive housing company experience 

and seek to build on the positive relationship established to date. Their clean bill of 

health for the 2018/19 year is extremely re-assuring and welcome. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

49



Registered no. 10212716 

 

20 | P a g e  

 

Group Statement of Financial Position 

For the year ended 31 March 

 2018/19 2017/18 Note 
Assets £ £  
Non-Current Assets    

Operational Property 4,900,355 1,033,000 1 

Assets Under Construction 1,395,719 0  

Total Non-Current Assets 6,296,074 1,033,000  

Current Assets    

Trade and Other Receivables 295,135 119,020 2 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 379,270 11  

Total Current Assets 674,405 119,031  

Current Liabilities    

Trade and Other Payables (2,589,481) (702,166) 3 

Total Current Liabilities (2,589,481) (702,166)  

Net Current Assets (1,915,076) (583,135)  

Net Assets Less Current Liabilities 4,380,998 449,865  

    
Non-Current Liabilities    

Long Term Loans : Amounts Falling Due After More Than One Year (4,326,670) (1,053,606) 4 

Total Non-Current Liabilities (4,326,670) (1,053,606)  

Provisions and Reserves    

Share Capital (100) (100) 9 

Retained (Earnings)/Losses (54,228) 603,841  

Total Provisions and Reserves (54,328) 603,741  

Total Financing and Reserves (4,380,998) (449,865)  

    

50



Registered no. 10212716 

 

21 | P a g e  

 

Group Statement of Profit and Loss and Comprehensive Income 

For the year ending 31 March 

 2018/19 2017/18 Note 
 £ £  
Rent Receivables 97,488 52,796 5 

Gross Profit 97,488 52,796  

Other Income 0 0  

Administrative Expenses (443,120) (570,565) 6 

Operating Surplus/(Loss) (345,632) (517,769)  

Interest Payable And Similar Charges (114,612) (29,860)      7 

Surplus/(Loss) Before Tax (460,244) (547,629)  

Corporation Tax 0 0 8 

Surplus/(Def) After Tax (460,244) (547,629)  

Unrealised Surplus/(Loss) On Revaluations 1,118,313 0 1 

Total Comprehensive Income For The Year 658,069 (547,629)  

Comprehensive Income Brought Forward (603,741) (56,112)  

Comprehensive Income Carried Forward 54,328 (603,741)  

 

Group Statement of Changes in Net Equity 

For the year ending 31 March 2019 

 Share 
Capital 

Retained 
Earnings 

Total 
Equity 

 £ £ £ 
Balance at 01 April 2018 100 (603,841) (603,741) 

Total Comprehensive Profit/(Loss) for the year 0 658,069 658,069 

Issue of Share Capital 0 0 0 

Balance at 31 March 2019 100 54,228 54,328 

 

51



Registered no. 10212716 

 

22 | P a g e  

 

Group Statement of Cash Flows 

For the year ending 31 March 

 2018/19 2017/18 Note 
 £ £  
Operating Activities    

Loss Before Tax (460,244) (547,629)  

Adjustments for:    

Depreciation 7,645 0  

Interest Payable and Similar Charges 114,612 565  

Impairment Loss 113,158 0 9 

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (176,115) (106,515)  

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables (251,485) 633,449  

Net Cash From Operating Activities (652,429) (20,130)  

Investing Activities    

Sale/(Purchase) of Operational Property (2,869,845) (305,000)  

Development Activities (1,395,719) 0  

Net Cash From Investing Activities (4,265,564) (305,000)  

Financing Activities    

New Long-Term Borrowing 3,273,064 311,000  

New Short-Term Borrowing 2,138,800 0  

Issue of Share Capital 0 0  

Interest Payable and Similar Charges (114,612) (565)  

Reduction in Borrowing 0 0  

Net Cash From Financing Activities 5,297,252 310,435  

Net Cashflows 379,259 (14,695)  

    

 

 

52



Registered no. 10212716 

 

23 | P a g e  

 

Notes to the Group Financial Statements 2018-19 

1. Operational Property 
 

 2018/19 2017/18 
 £ £ 
Opening Operational Property 01 April 1,033,000 728,000 

Purchase of Operational Property In Year 2,869,845 305,000 

Revaluations 1,118,313 0 

Impairment (113,158) 0 

Disposals 0 0 

Closing Operational Property 31 March 4,908,000 1,033,000 

 

2. Trade and Other Receivables 
 

 2018/19 2017/18 
 £ £ 
Prepayments and Accrued Income 221,901 113,020 

Other Receivables 73,234 6,000 

Trade and Other Receivables 295,135 119,020 

              

3. Trade and Other Payables 
 

 2018/19 2017/18 
 £ £ 
Trade Creditors and Accrued Expenditure 447,940 666,306 

Other Payables 2,141,542 35,860 

Trade and Other Payables 2,589,482 702,166 

 
 
 
 
 

53



Registered no. 10212716 

 

24 | P a g e  

 

4. Non-Current Liabilities 
 

 2018/19 2017/18 
 £ £ 
Long Term Loans 4,326,670 1,053,606 

Non-Current Liabilities 4,326,670 1,053,606 

 
5. Rent Receivables 

 

 2018/19 2017/18 
 £ £ 
Rental Income 97,488 52,796 

Rent Receivables 97,488 52,796 

6. Administration Expenses 
 

 2018/19 2017/18 
 £ £ 
Legal Fees/Services 101,106 14,217 

Consultancy Fees 66,115 161,366 

Financial Services (SLA) 125,708 92,115 

External Audit Fee 10,000 10,000 

Tax Advice 0 10,641 

Property Repairs 0 3,750 

Development Fees 0 278,351 

Depreciation 7,645 0 

Impairment 113,158 0 

Procurement Advice 6,000 0 

Insurance 6,192 0 

IT (SLA) 5,666 0 

Sundry 1,530 125 

Administration Expenses 443,120 570,565 

54



Registered no. 10212716 

 

25 | P a g e  

 

7. Interest Payable and Similar Charges 
 

 2018/19 2017/18 
 £ £ 
Long Term Borrowing – Capital Value 56,739 1,900 

Long Term Borrowing – Cost of Purchase 0 34 

Interest and Commission 57,873 27,926 

Interest Payable and Similar Charges 114,612 29,860 

  
8. Corporation Tax 

 
No corporation tax or deferred tax liability has been posted to the financial 
statements during this period due to losses incurred. The company has not 
provided for the deferred tax asset, estimated to be £87,446 (2018 £101,074), as 
the company does not yet have an established record of profitability. 

 
9. Called Up Share Capital 

 

 2018/19 
Number 

2018/19 

  £ 
Ordinary Shares @ £1 each - Authorised 100 100 

Ordinary Shares @ £1 each – Issues and Fully Paid 100 100 

 
10.  Related Party Transactions 

 
The company is wholly owned by Oxford City Council.  The Council has made 
long term loans totalling £4,326,670 and short terms loans of £2,138,800 to the 
Group.  Interest of £143,327 (2018 £29,860) has been charged on the loans.  At 
the Statement of Financial Position date the amounts due to the Council were: 

 

 

 

 

 

55



Registered no. 10212716 

 

26 | P a g e  

 

 2018/19 2017/18 
 £ £ 
Long Term Loans 4,326,670 1,053,606 

Short Term Loans 2,138,800 0 

Interest 143,327 29,860 

Amounts owed to the Council 131,098 494,448 

Rental Income owed by the Council (221,901) (53,953) 

Related Party Transactions 6,517,994 1,523,961 

11.  Audit Fee 
 

 2018/19 2017/18 
 £ £ 
Audit Fee – Audit of Accounts 10,000 10,000 

Audit Fee 10,000 10,000 

12.  Financial Instruments 
 
The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate 
risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The directors regularly review and agree 
policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below. 
 
Interest rate risk 
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates is limited 
because its debt obligations are at fixed rates of interest, established at a time 
when prevailing rates are low. All such borrowings are denominated in Sterling. 
The rates of interest are 3.86% and 3.76%.The amount outstanding is shown in 
note 18 to the financial statements. There is no difference between the values 
shown above and the fair values of the arrangements. 
 
Credit risk 
Credit risk is managed on a company basis. Credit risk arises principally from 
cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions as 
well as credit exposure to customers including committed transactions and 
outstanding receivables. The Group reviews its banking arrangements carefully 
to minimise such risks and has put in place credit control procedures to mitigate 
against risks arising from customers.   

56



Registered no. 10212716 

 

27 | P a g e  

 

 
Liquidity risk 
Management monitors monthly forecasts of the Group’s expected cash flows to 
ensure that a sufficiently liquid position is maintained. The rental income stream 
and cost base is predictable and the Group has sought support from its parent 
undertaking during the initial set up period. 

 
13.  Capital Risk Management 

 
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in order to achieve the Group’s objectives.  
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the 
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue 
new shares to reduce debt.  

 

57



This page is intentionally left blank



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



Minutes of a meeting of the 
SHAREHOLDER MEETING
on Thursday 7 March 2019 

Committee members:
Councillor Brown Councillor Chapman
Councillor Clarkson Councillor Hayes
Councillor Hollingsworth Councillor Rowley
Councillor Linda Smith Councillor Turner
Councillor Upton

Officers: 
Tim Sadler, Executive Director Sustainable City
Simon Howick, Managing Director, Trading Companies
Aled Bath, Finance Director
Lindsay Cane, Legal Services Manager / Company Secretary
Anita Bradley, Monitoring Officer
John Mitchell, Committee and Member Services Officer
Nigel Kennedy, Head of Financial Services

Apologies:
Apologies were received from Councillor Tidball

16. Declarations of interest 
None.

17. Minutes of the previous meeting 
The Shareholder resolved to approve the minutes of the meeting held on 15 November 
2018 as a true and accurate record.

18. Scrutiny recommendations 
The Companies Scrutiny Panel had met on 28 February 2019 but not made any 
specific recommendations to the Shareholder. The Scrutiny Officer however gave the 
Shareholder a brief verbal account of the meeting. The Panel had noted that delivery 
against key performance indicators remained good and satisfaction with public toilets 
could improve, possibly through the use of full-time attendants.

19. ODSL Managing Director's performance report Q3 2018/19 
The Managing  Director gave a brief introduction to his report. At the end of quarter 3 
performance was good and ODS remained on track to deliver the MTFP target of 
£1.3m profit after tax. Good progress was being made against the first year’s 
objectives. 

143

Agenda Item 6



ODS was seeking to maximise the opportunities of work from the Council. In expanding 
and improving ODS’s offer, additional personnel with relevant expertise were being 
recruited as necessary. There had been a considerable focus on customer satisfaction, 
seeking a deeper understanding of customer views and refining the offer accordingly. A 
bespoke survey of 4 key areas of Streetscene was being used to establish a 
benchmark from which to work; street cleanliness was recognised to be an area of 
continued focus. 

The monitoring and management of Health and Safety continued to be a priority with 
good engagement by ODS staff.  Understanding and reporting of near misses had been 
identified as an area in need of improvement.

The Managing Director said he would find out if the indicator for satisfaction with public 
toilets was based on cleanliness, availability or both.

It was suggested that the good relationship between ODS and OCC staff (those 
supporting rough sleepers for example) should be brought to the fore in future reports.  
The report implied, in the section headed Rough Sleeping, that the issue of drug 
paraphernalia was necessarily associated with rough sleeping, which it was not; future 
reports should be more carefully worded. 

20. Exempt Matters 
The Shareholder resolved that,  in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 21(1)(b) of the 
Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England) Regulations 
2000, the press and the public  be excluded from the meeting on the grounds that their 
presence could involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as described in specific 
paragraphs of Schedule I2A of the Local Government Act 1972.

21. ODSL Managing Director's performance report Q3 2018/19 - 
Appendix 3 

This item was considered in confidential session.

22. ODSL and ODSTL Business Plan 
This item was considered in confidential session.

23. Declaration of Interim Dividend 
This item was considered in confidential session.

24. Date of next meeting 
The next already scheduled meeting of the Shareholder is on 04 July 2019.

The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 7.10 pm

Chair ………………………….. Date:  Thursday 30 May 2019

144



Minutes of a meeting of the  
SHAREHOLDER 
on Thursday 30 May 2019  
 
 
 

Committee members: 

Councillor Brown (Chair) Councillor Chapman 

Councillor Clarkson Councillor Hayes 

Councillor Hollingsworth Councillor Rowley 

Officers:  
Nigel Kennedy, Head of Financial Services 
Richard Connolly, Housing Group 
Stephen Clarke, Housing Group 
Lindsay Cane, Company Secretary 
Alan Wylde, Housing Group 
David Watt, Housing Group 
Catherine Phythian, Committee Services Officer 
Alison Daly, Lawyer 

Apologies: 
Councillor(s) Linda Smith, Tidball, Turner and Upton sent apologies. 
 

25. Declarations of interest  
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

26. Minutes of the previous meeting  

The Housing Group Shareholder resolved to approve the minutes of the previous 
meeting held on 22 January 2019. 

 

27. Appointment of a Director to the Boards of the Housing Group of 
companies  

The Company Secretary presented the report. Councillor Rowley commended the 
appointment of Richard Connolly to the Shareholder.  
 
The Housing Group Shareholder resolved to: 

1. Appoint Richard Connolly as a Director of Oxford City Housing Limited, Oxford City 
Housing (Development) Limited and Oxford City Housing (Investment) Limited with 
immediate effect. 

 
In discussion the Shareholder requested that the Monitoring Officer and Company 
Secretary provide a briefing paper on the selection process for Company Directors and 
specifically on the role of the Shareholder in the selection process. 

145



 

0. Items to be considered in private - matters exempt from 
publication  

The Shareholder resolved to: 

exclude the press and the public from the meeting during consideration of any of the items on 
the exempt from publication part of the agenda, in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 
4(2)(b) of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England) 
Regulations 2012 on the grounds that their presence could involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as described in specific paragraphs of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972.  

28. Recommendations from the Companies' Scrutiny Panel  

Discussed in private session.  

 

29. The future strategic direction of the Council's Group of Housing 
Companies  

Discussed in private session.  

 

30. Confidential minutes of the previous meeting  

The Housing Group Shareholder resolved to approve the confidential minutes of 
the previous meeting held on 22 January 2019. 
 
 
 
The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 7.00 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chair       Date:   

146


	Agenda
	4c Trading Companies  - 2019/20 Performance and  Finance for Q1 (Open)
	5a Housing Group - Progressing the strategic future direction of the Council's Group of Housing Companies and the 2018/19 Annual Review
	Appendix 1 - Housing Group Annual Review 2018-19
	Appendix 2 - Housing Group Annual Report and Financial Statements 2018-19
	Housing Group - Mazaars year end audit letter
	2018 19 Oxford City Housing Limited - Signed & Scanned
	2018 19 Oxford City Housing (Development) Limited - Signed & Scanned
	2018 19 Oxford City Housing (Investment) Limited - Signed & Scanned


	6 Minutes of  previous meetings
	Minutes
	Housing Company Minute Public Pack , 30/05/2019 Shareholder


